
MINUTES
    SOUTH GULF COVE WATERWAY 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE BENEFIT UNIT (MSBU) 
 

ADVISORY BOARD REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 22, 2024 

 
1:30 p.m. – 3:25 p.m. 

Mac V. Horton West County Annex 
6868 San Casa Drive, Englewood, Florida  

 
Board Members:  Jenna Ginsberg, Chair 
  Patrick Gilchrist 
  Jim Krause  
  John Osanitsch 
Members Absent:  Michael Harkins 
County Staff:   Lorraine Moneypenny, Community Liaison 
  Matt Logan, Projects Manager 
  DeWayne Nodine, Projects Manager 
Guests:  Sign-in sheet attached 
 
Call to Order / Roll Call:  
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m.  A roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.  
 
Changes to Agenda / Motion to Approve Changes:  
None 
 
Citizen Input on Agenda Items (3 Minute Limit):  
None 
 
Approval of Minutes:  
The February 7, 2024 minutes were unanimously approved as submitted.   
  
Unfinished Business:  
a. Parallel Lock / Tender House: Mr. Logan announced the contractor, DMK, has resumed work 

leading to a 60% design on the 3-part plan to rehabilitate Lock #1, build a tender house, and 
build parallel Lock #2. Because permits cannot currently be acquired for Lock #2, Board 
members assumed Lock #2 would be excluded from the design. Mr. Gilchrest noted that the 
camera locations were selected based on two locks. Ms. Ginsberg noted that lock traffic is 
manageable now but households in South Gulf Cove will triple. She emphasized the Board’s 
desire to move forward with building the tender house and rejuvenating Lock #1, with a view 
to 99% operability and fifty-year life extension. She urged Public Works to share more data 
and asked about permits. Mr. Logan responded: the tender house permit does not expire; 
utility permits for it are in process; rejuvenation of Lock #1 would require a permit; a permit for 
Lock #2 may still be obtainable. Mr. Logan will seek management’s advice and report back.  

b. Interior Bathymetric Survey: Ms. Ginsberg remarked that interior canals are low; the survey 
showed spots where the draft is below five feet and channels are only twenty feet wide. 
Navigation is still possible in the center of channels. Mr. Nodine said the system is at 1.2 feet 
below mean low water (MLW) and approaching the benchmark for seeking permission from 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection to open the lock and fill the canals. Ms. 
Ginsberg asked Mr. Nodine to find out how the benchmark is computed -- using NAVD or 
LMW? She asked to be provided with the surveyor’s xyz files, if possible, and to require that 



Minutes – South Gulf Cove Waterway 5.22.2024 Page 2 

provision in future contracts. Mr. Nodine noted that the survey was preliminary; the Board 
reiterated its commitment to seek community input and supply additional shallow locations to 
be surveyed. 

 
Regarding an exterior dredge from the lock to the harbor, Ms. Ginsberg noted that the 
estimated cost for dredging 7,500 cubic yards has tripled since the pre-Hurricane Ian dredge. 

 
c. Existing Lock Maintenance / Cameras: Ms. Moneypenny noted that cylinders in the existing 

lock will be changed on three successive Wednesdays in June; the community was notified. 
Mr. Osanitsch pondered whether necessary electrical work on the chains could be 
accomplished at the same time. Mr. Kraus added that the deck has also developed a 
dangerous condition; it is visibly lifting. The Board urged Public Works to find a contractor to 
address these issues, plus corroded cables and concrete. (Later, during open discussion, the 
Board made a formal motion.) Ms. Moneypenny reminded the Board that Public Works is 
preparing separately to seek bids on an annual maintenance contract for FY25.  

Mr. Krause noted that some damage to the lock is caused by boat owners and commercial 
operators. Currently, there is no process to hold lock users liable for damage. Mr. Krause 
moved, and Mr. Osanitsch seconded a motion that Charlotte County supply the lock tender 
with a legal form to record incidents and provide an incident report to the Advisory Board 
quarterly. The motion carried.  
 
Mr. Gilchrist questioned why it takes so long to acquire utility right-of-way permits on Cattle 
Dock Road for the tender house. 
 

New Business: 
a. Financial Reports: The FY2024 second quarter actual expenditure report was reviewed, as 

were maintenance activity reports for December, January and February. Ms. Ginsberg noted 
that the budget for dredging will not be spent in FY24. She reminded the Board that trimming 
funds were reallocated to replacing cylinders, and that it will be necessary to budget for 
cylinder replacement every eighteen months. There were no other questions. 

Citizen Input on MSBU Items (3 Minute Limit): 
 Mr. Sparano asked when the lock will be shut down for cylinder replacement. Mr. Osanitsch 

directed the citizen to the County website and the South Gulf Cove Facebook page. 
 Mr. Brown asked why design on parallel lock is going forward when it is unlikely to be 

permitted. He asked when Lock #1 will be rejuvenated, how much a lock tender costs, and 
what is the process for spot dredging in the absence of a warrant for a total interior dredge. 
Discussion ensued. Ms. Ginsberg replied that the full-time lock tender will cost the MSBU 
$75,000 a year; she offered to resend a list of spot dredge sites to the community.  

 
Advisory Board Open Discussion:  
Mr. Osanitsch opined that abandoning the parallel lock project should speed up the tender house 
project. For now, the single lock can accommodate the fifty-five boats that use it each day. And 
maintenances costs are lower since the lock has been tended. Mr. Logan emphasized that 
permits may still be possible. Ms. Ginsberg reminded the Board of its responsibility to keep waters 
navigable for fifty years. That is the reason the Board of County Commissioners wants a parallel 
lock built. 
 
Mr. Gilchrist moved that the County proceed with a scope of work and cost estimate for the 
rejuvenation of the existing lock, to include rebuilding electrical aspects and possibly raising the 
spill walls. Mr. Krause seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.  
 


































